
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call David Penrose, Democratic 
Services Officer on 01432 383690 or e-mail 
dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Community Services Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

 

Date: Friday 11 February 2011 

Time: 10.00 am 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

David Penrose, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01432 383690 
Email: dpenrose@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

The Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s) 
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial.  Councillors have to decide 
first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion.  They will then have to 
decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial. 

  
A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.  
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council.  Councillors 
will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an organisation that they 
or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area.  If they do have a personal 
interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.   

 

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor.  What Councillors have 
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public – if he or she knew all the facts – would think 
that the Councillor’s interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it.  If a Councillor 
has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is.  A Councillor who has declared a 
prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting, but only in 
circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak.  In such 
circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting and on 
the same terms.  However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these circumstances must 
leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken. 
 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Community 
Services Scrutiny Committee 
  

Membership  
  

Chairman Councillor TM James 
Vice-Chairman Councillor KG Grumbley 

  

Councillor PL Bettington  
Councillor BA Durkin  
Councillor DW Greenow  
Councillor KS Guthrie  
Councillor MAF Hubbard  
Councillor B Hunt  
Councillor SJ Robertson  
Councillor RH Smith  
Councillor AP Taylor  
  

 
Mrs Gillian Churchill HALC 
Mrs. J. Evans National Farmers Union 
Mr Gary Woodman Hereford and Worcester Chamber of 

Commerce 
 
 

  Non Voting 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  11 FEBRUARY 2011 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES     
   
 To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place 

of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
4. MINUTES   1 - 2  
   
 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2011.  
   
5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR 

FUTURE SCRUTINY   
  

   
 To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the 

Committee could scrutinise in the future. 
 

   
6. SCRUTINY REVIEW OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTION OF THE EDGAR 

STREET GRID PROJECT   
3 - 30  

   
 To receive an updated report on the Scrutiny Review of the Strategic 

Direction of the Edgar Street Grid Project. 
 

   
7. SAFER HEREFORDSHIRE SCRUTINY REVIEW GROUP ANNUAL 

REPORT 2010   
31 - 36  

   
 To provide a summary of the activity of the Crime and Disorder Review 

Group during 2010 and to set out the considered findings and 
recommendations from the Group. 

 

   
8. FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS OF THE SAFER HEREFORD PARTNERSHIP   37 - 40  
   
 To receive a report on the future developments of the Safer Herefordshire 

Partnership. 
 

   
9. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME   41 - 44  
   
 To consider the Committee’s Work Programme.  
   





PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Adult Social Care 
and Strategic Housing, Children’s Services, Community Services, 
Environment, and Health.  An Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
scrutinises corporate matters and co-ordinates the work of these 
Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 
•  Help in developing Council policy 
 
• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions 

before and after decisions are taken 
 
• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised 

by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public 
 
• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny 

Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further 
scrutiny. 

 
• Review performance of the Council 
 
• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 
• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information 
on your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out 
overleaf 
 



PUBLIC INFORMATION 

Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings 

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny 
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny 
Committees to investigate.  

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at 
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings. 

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny 

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present if 
they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to 
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time 
when the matter is raised.  Councillors will research the issue and consider 
whether it should form part of the Committee’s work programme when 
compared with other competing priorities. 

Please note that the Committees can only scrutinise items which fall within 
their specific remit (see below).  If a matter is raised which falls within the 
remit of another Scrutiny Committee then it will be noted and passed on to 
the relevant Chairman for their consideration.   

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at 
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings 

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee 
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an item 
listed on the agenda.  If you have a question you would like to ask then 
please submit it no later than two working days before the meeting to 
the Committee Officer.  This will help to ensure that an answer can be 
provided at the meeting.  Contact details for the Committee Officer can be 
found on the front page of this agenda.   

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the 
discussion at the meeting.  This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.   

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committees are not able to discuss 
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.) 



 
Remits of Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committees 
 
Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing 
 
Statutory functions for adult social services including: 
Learning Disabilities 
Strategic Housing 
Supporting People 
Public Health 
 
Children’s Services 
 
Provision of services relating to the well-being of children including 
education, health and social care. 
 
Community Services Scrutiny Committee 
 
Libraries 
Cultural Services including heritage and tourism 
Leisure Services 
Parks and Countryside 
Community Safety 
Economic Development 
Youth Services 
 
Health 
 
Planning, provision and operation of health services affecting the area 
Health Improvement 
Services provided by the NHS 
 
Environment 
 
Environmental Issues 
Highways and Transportation 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Corporate Strategy and Finance 
Resources  
Corporate and Customer Services 
Human Resources 
 

 



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 

business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this 
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal 
with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for 
visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
Public Transport Links 
 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 

approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco store in 
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / 
Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction 
with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 
 
 
If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 

 

 

 

 
Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-
inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the 
Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

 



 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at 
the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken 
to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the 
building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 



AGENDA ITEM 4

1



2



 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
David Penrose, Democratic Services Officer on (01432) 383690 

MEETING: COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

DATE: 11 FEBRUARY 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: SCRUTINY REVIEW OF THE STRATEGIC 
DIRECTION OF THE EDGAR STREET GRID 
PROJECT 

REPORT BY:  Edgar Street Grid Scrutiny Review Group 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide. 

Purpose 

To consider the findings arising from the Scrutiny Review of The Strategic Direction of the 
Edgar Street Grid Project.. 

Recommendation 

THAT  
 

(a)  the Committee considers the report of the Review Group, in particular 
its recommendations, and determines whether it wishes to agree the 
findings for submission to the Cabinet Member. 

 

(b)  subject to the Review being approved, the Executive’s response to 
the Review including an action plan be reported to the first available 
meeting of the Committee after the Executive has approved its 
response; 

 

and; 
 

(c)  a further report on progress in response to the Review be made after 
six months with consideration then being given to the need for any 
further reports to be made. 

 

Introduction and Background 

1. At the meeting of the Community Services Scrutiny Committee on 11 October 2010 the 
Committee considered a suggestion that a Scrutiny Review of the Strategic Direction 
of the Edgar Street Grid Project should be undertaken.   The Committee agreed to 
form a scrutiny review group and appointed its membership.  The terms of reference 
for the review were drawn up by the Lead Officer for the Review and are incorporated 
into the attached report at Appendix 1. 

AGENDA ITEM 6

3



2. The Review Group’s report setting out its approach to its task, its findings, and 
recommendations is attached. 

 
Background Papers 

• None identified. 

 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



2
1



2
2



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Jane Rose, Partnership Manager for Safer Herefordshire on (01432) 261831  
 

MEETING: COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 11 FEBRUARY 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: SAFER HEREFORDSHIRE SCRUTINY REVIEW 
GROUP ANNUAL REPORT 2010 

REPORT BY:   Partnership Manager for Safer Herefordshire 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Purpose 

To provide a summary of the activity of the Crime and Disorder Review Group during 2010 and to set 
out the considered findings and recommendations from the Group. 

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT the Committee note the contents of the report.  

Key Points Summary 

• The scrutiny process invited comments and views from the Committee on Safer 
Herefordshire’s performance; 

• It ensured Safer Herefordshire is contributing to the outcomes in the Safer Communities 
elements of the Corporate Plan; and 

• The strategic direction and performance of Safer Herefordshire was noted. 

• Those areas of activity pertinent to the partnership were used as the basis of reporting to 
the Committee. 

• The process for arriving at the priorities, via the strategic assessment, was deemed 
appropriate. 

• Community consultation and engagement is carried out on a regular, on-going basis and 
fed into the strategic assessment process. 

• The Scrutiny Review Group examined a number of selected performance indicators. 

• The Review group considered that there was generally an improving picture regarding anti-
social behaviour. 

• That with the economic climate, it is expected that an increase in drug related criminality is 
likely. 

• The Review Group supported the concept of the wrap around agenda for drug users. 

• The Review group recognised that whilst there were a high number of GP surgeries 
supporting drug treatment, every effort should be made to ensure that all GP practises in 
the county were part of the programme. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

31



• The Review group felt that the indicator NI30 (re-offending of PPO’s) was well understood 
by Safer Herefordshire and performance against the indicator was good and that positive 
progress was being made. 

Alternative Options 

 1 None. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 This is a summary of the areas of work within Safer Herefordshire that the Review Group 
have focused on, over the last year.  These areas have been examined and findings and 
recommendations previously reported to Committee. 

Introduction and Background 

3 Safer Herefordshire (formerly Herefordshire Community Safety and Drugs Partnership) was 
formed as a result of the 1998 Crime and Disorder Act, which was later amended by the 
2002 Police Reform Act.  The partnership has undertaken regular reviews to identify 
concerns and local priorities and monitors performance against local and government 
targets.  The Partnership also facilitates multi-agency working groups to ensure a joined up 
approach for tackling crime and disorder issues across Herefordshire.  Operationally, the 
Partnership translates its strategic priorities into action plans that are implemented through 
the Partnership and its groups.  Some of this work is delivered directly by the Partnership 
whilst some is commissioned out to other organisations.   

4 A duty was placed on the Council to scrutinise crime and disorder matters, with an emphasis 
on holding the Partnership to account, rather than individual partners.  The main issues that 
needed to be considered were the co-option of members on to the committee, the 
development of both a protocol with Safer Herefordshire and a work programme for the 
Committee.  Guidance stated one member of the Committee should be a member of the 
Police Authority; both the council’s current representatives on the Police Authority serve on 
the Community Services Scrutiny Committee, so it was felt this met the expectation.  A 
protocol was developed that outlined the mutual expectations of the Committee and Safer 
Herefordshire. It was also felt that the Committee should include in its work programme a list 
of issues which it needed to cover during the year and this would be agreed in consultation 
with partners of the Community Safety Partnership.   

5 The guidance states that the role of the Committee would be “as a critical friend of the 
Community Safety Partnership, providing it with constructive challenge at a strategic level 
rather than fault finding at an operational level.” 

Key Considerations 

6 The Committee received a report providing an introduction to the Safer Herefordshire 
Strategic Assessment process and performance for 2009 and presented the priorities for 
2010-11, as agreed by the Safer Herefordshire Strategy Group.  The list of priorities that 
emerged from the 2009 strategic assessment as presented to the Safer Herefordshire 
Strategy group were: 

Alcohol misuse; Anti social behaviour; Drug misuse; Road safety; Domestic abuse; 
and Offender management. 

7 The Safer Herefordshire Local Area Agreement (LAA) priorities for 2008-11 were laid out for 

32



the Committee and linked to a number of indicators in the Corporate Plan.  These were: 

NI19 – To reduce the rate of proven re-offending by young offenders 

NI21 – Dealing with local concerns about anti-social behaviour and crime issues by the 
local council and police 

NI30 – To reduce the re-offending rate of prolific and other priority offenders 

NI39 – To reduce alcohol-harm related hospital admission rates (local target) 

NI40 – To increase the numbers of people in effective drug treatment 

NI47 – To reduce the number of people killed or seriously injured in road traffic  
accidents. 

8 It was agreed that it was more efficient that the work programme for crime and disorder 
should be carried forward by small sub group of the main Committee.  A regular agenda item 
to update the Committee on progress would be included on future Committee Agendas.  The 
group developed a proposed work programme, focusing on the NI’s that Safer Herefordshire 
was responsible for addressing.  It was agreed that the group would be supported by the 
Safer Herefordshire Manager and Democratic Services. 

9 The work programme was agreed, in consultation with Safer Herefordshire, to ensure that 
matters listed for future consideration are appropriate subjects for scrutiny.  It was agreed 
that the work programme would cover: 

Review Strategic Documentation and Strategic Assessment process – to include Safer 
Herefordshire Annual Strategic Assessment, Partnership Plan, Community 
Consultation and Engagement and Information sharing arrangements within the 
partnership. 

Review Partnership Priorities – to include NI39 (Rate and number of alcohol harm 
related hospital admissions), NI21 (Percentage of people satisfied with how the council 
and the police deal with concerns about anti-social behaviour) and NI40 (Drug users in 
effective treatment). 

10 The Safer Herefordshire constitution and terms of reference were also being reviewed and 
rewritten by the Partnership.  Copies were provided to Members of the Committee.   

11 The Review group met with Dr Arif Mahmood, Consultant in Public Health Medicine, to 
discuss alcohol issues and performance against NI39. The group was reassured that the 
Alcohol Harm Reduction Group was working to put in place a strategic plan to address this 
issue and that co-ordination of the activity would be key to its success.  The use of proxy 
indicators was well supported, together with the suggestion that all funding streams should 
be centralised. 

12 The Alcohol Harm Reduction Group is currently working to further operationalise the plan by 
identifying key actions partners need to take and then feedback to the Safer Herefordshire 
Strategy group. Alcohol treatment commissioning was occurring on an ad hoc basis within a 
variety of agencies. 

13 Members of the Police Authority, Police and Community Protection Team met with the 
review group to discuss anti-social behaviour (ASB).  Attention is being focused on ASB, as 
this is distressing to victims.  Repeat victimisation is reducing, although there are pockets of 

33



problems.  Perceptions of ASB are complex, and a communications strategy has been put in 
place to assist.  The work of the Community Protection Team is promoted at every 
opportunity, however it is often not recognised that the team address ASB; people recognise 
dog fouling and fly tipping as wrong, but do not see it as ASB. 

14 A monthly multi-agency meeting, known as MATAC (Multi-agency Tasking and Co-
ordination), is held to look at priorities and how they should be tackled.   A representative 
from the Review Group observed this meeting, which discussed strategy, tactics and case 
management.  Despite being wide ranging, it was well chaired and very focused.     

15 The Review Group met with the Chair of the Joint Commissioning Group for drugs and the 
Safer Herefordshire Commissioner to review progress in this area.  There was a lack of 
confidence from the Review Group concerning the number of drug users in the county, as 
the figures produced by the University of Glasgow were national calculations, and had a 20% 
margin for error. 

16 Few users are sent out of county for residential rehabilitation, as this is not the most effective 
way of treating people.  Greater emphasis was being put on the community based wrap 
around approach to rehabilitation, through support and education.  Most users want to do a 
community detox in this way, supported by DASH (local drug service). 

17 The following points were also made: 

a. With the increase in financial pressures, it was important that the Children’s Trusts 
drug prevention educational work in schools should not be lost. 

b. The criminal justice system is not effective for chaotic drug users; treatment regimes 
would be more appropriate. 

c. Grants from central government are linked to performance; the NI40 is rated green 
and the National Treatment Agency (NTA) is happy with local progress. 

18 The Review Group met to examine NI30 (To reduce the re-offending rate of prolific and 
other priority offenders).  The group felt the indicator was well understood and performance 
and activity was well under control.  In terms of the indicator, the Review Group felt well 
assured that positive progress was being made.  The group applauded the success of the 
SHIFT Care Farm and were impressed to receive clear evidence of its results.  

19 The discussions around re-offending were useful and informative.  It was recognised that 
Safer Herefordshire had tangible information and intelligence which it used to direct activity 
and thereby reducing the impact on the county of prolific offenders.  Progress was being 
made in this area, which dealt with the needs of a specific number of offenders. 

Conclusions 

20 The Review Group wished to observe the Safer Herefordshire priority setting process, so a 
Member attended the Safer Herefordshire Strategy Group workshop event.  The findings 
from the strategic assessment were presented and then Members discussed and agreed 
priorities, based upon the information provided.  It was agreed that the process was suitable. 

21 The Review Group felt that work was on going against the alcohol indicator and that the co-
ordination of the activity would be the key to its successes.  The use of proxy indicators was 
well supported, together with the suggestion that all funding streams and all alcohol 
commissioning should be centralised, with the commissioning of services by the Alcohol 
Harm Reduction Group directed through the Joint Commissioning Group. 

34



22 With regards to anti social behaviour, it was noted that the way matters were being reported 
was being looked at.  The police were aware that people reported issues of concern to their 
Ward and Parish Councillors.  It was agreed that it was appropriate for Councillors to contact 
the police with their concerns. 

23 In-patient detox and rehabilitation programmes are not as effective as other treatment 
programmes, as they are costly and it is very hard to measure specific outcomes.  The drug 
and alcohol treatment services deal with the physical aspects of addiction, but a more 
effective model would be wrap around support, which would also address the underlying 
causes of addiction.  Housing is an issue, as it is difficult to access reasonable housing for 
recovering drug users.  Registered Social Landlords should be encouraged to set some 
housing stock aside for users, as part of the wrap around agenda. 

24 Safer Herefordshire has a statutory responsibility to deliver on the reducing reoffending 
agenda.  The Integrated Offender Management (IOM) group will use the information from 
the service mapping work to develop its Reducing Reoffending Strategy, to be in place by 
April 2011. 

Community Impact 

25   Effective Crime and Disorder Scrutiny should have a beneficial community impact and 
contribute to effective partnership arrangements. 

26 The impact of crime, disorder and substance misuse to the local and wider community is 
substantial.  Therefore the use and analysis of current, relevant quality data is crucial to 
identifying and understanding current and emerging issues. 

27 Engagement with drug users shows that effective wrap-around services are needed. 

28 IOM encourages communities to engage with offenders in a positive manner and be part of 
their rehabilitation process and so increase the effectiveness of their re-integration into 
society. 

29 Engagement with offenders in this structured way significantly reduces the impact on 
communities, as their criminal behaviour lessens. 

Financial Implications 

30 The work plan for the scrutiny of crime and disorder matters has been managed with regards 
to the resources available. 

31 Safer Herefordshire is funded direct from government funds, partner contributions and via 
the Area Based Grant pot.  Funding is currently agreed on a year-by-year basis, with overall 
budgets decreasing.  Specific activities are drawn up by the strategic leads for each of the 
priority areas.  These are incorporated into the annual work plans.  Resources are allocated 
appropriately and within the available budget. 

Legal Implications 

32 The council needs to comply with the statutory duty to scrutinise crime and disorder matters. 

33 Safer Herefordshire is a statutory partnership, following statutory procedures. 

35



Risk Management 

34 Risks to a successful partnership include: 

Partner engagement; 

Finance – year on year decreasing budgets; 

Lack of choice of providers 

Mitigation measures for these principal risks are included in the annual plans. 

Consultees 

35  Safer Herefordshire partners are consulted as projects are progressed. 

36 Drug treatment providers and service users are consulted and involved in service 
development work. 

Appendices 

• None.  

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

36



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Jane Rose, Partnership Manager for Safer Herefordshire on (01432) 261831  
 

MEETING: COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE: 11 FEBRUARY 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS OF THE SAFER 
HEREFORDSHIRE PARTNERSHIP 

REPORT BY:   Partnership Manager for Safer Herefordshire 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Purpose 

To receive a report on the future developments of the Safer Herefordshire Partnership.  

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT the Committee note the contents of the report.  

Key Points Summary 

• Safer Herefordshire is operating within an ever changing complex landscape, responding to 
government changes in policies and strategies and local partner agency developments. 

• The partnership acknowledges it needs to focus on outcomes and fewer priorities. 

• The Safer Herefordshire Strategy Group has agreed to focus on the following priorities:   

                   Integrated Offender Management (IOM)  

Alcohol and  

Community Resilience. 

• Safer Herefordshire is currently financially vulnerable, as it relies heavily on Area Based Grant 
and partners contributions. 

Introduction and Background 

3 There are many challenges and opportunities ahead for Safer Herefordshire.  The last year or 
so has been very uncertain, with changes in the Chair and key partners, but also the 
overarching funding situation; the next few years will be even more so.  This report will give 
the context of the landscape Safer Herefordshire is trying to commission and deliver 
community safety and substance misuse work. 

4 To explore the way forward, the Safer Herefordshire Strategy Group held a facilitated 
workshop.  This event explored the key findings of the strategic assessment, and partners 
discussed how they should move forward and set priorities.  There was a debate concerning 
the future purpose of the partnership and whether the group was needed, and how there was 
a need for Safer Herefordshire to be mindful of the developments within the wider Local 
Strategic Partnership landscape.   

AGENDA ITEM 8

37



Key Considerations 

5 The Governments Comprehensive Spend Review will impact on the financial viability of Safer 
Herefordshire.  The partnership has relied heavily on Area Based Grant (ABG) funding and 
smaller partner contributions.  As revenue grants will no longer be ring fenced, Safer 
Herefordshire budgets are vulnerable.  Partners are also unsure what future resources they 
can apply to the partnership.  The reduction in Supporting People funding is also likely to 
negatively affect Safer Herefordshire; reductions in housing support to vulnerable individuals 
could lead to greater levels of crime, substance misuse and domestic abuse, therefore 
impacting on Safer Herefordshire performance. 

6 Safer Herefordshire needs to consider how it will incorporate the Government’s Big Society 
Agenda and Localism agendas into its working practises; People and Places need to be 
central to everything the partnership does.    The partnership needs to be both transparent in 
its operation, and accountable to local people whilst involving and engaging communities in all 
stages of delivery and decision-making.   

7 The Home Office has produced a White Paper ‘Policing in 21st Century’.  The paper details 
how national targets, multiple funding streams and restrictive guidance have pulled community 
safety and criminal justice partners in different directions.  It has created elaborate and 
bureaucratic formal relationships, rather than a practical focus on the outcomes that matter to 
communities.  There is a need for more effective working with local authorities, wider criminal 
justice system and partners. 

8 The paper details how the Government will seek to empower the public with the abolition of 
Police Authorities, which will be replaced with directly elected Police and Crime 
Commissioners.  It will also empower the police by reducing bureaucracy, ensuring they are 
‘crime fighters, not form writers’.  To assist partnerships to play their part in the Big Society, 
the government will reform the wider approach to cutting crime, making sure everyone plays 
their full part.  They will do this by stripping away unnecessary prescription and bureaucracy in 
the partnership landscape. 

9 Safer Herefordshire carries out the function of Drug Action Team (DAT) for the County, so has 
responsibility for all substance misuse work.  Work is currently funded through a pooled 
budget, consisting mainly of National Treatment Agency (NTA) and PCT funding, with 
performance management falling to the NTA.  With the abolition of PCT’s and SHA’s by 2013, 
the funding will move to the new Public Health Service.  The NTA will be incorporated into the 
Department of Health (DoH).  The development of GP Commissioning will also impact on how 
future commissioning is delivered.   

10 Policies on drug and alcohol treatment need to be joined up and this has been recognised in 
the new combined Government strategy.  The strategy details the need to focus on solving the 
problem of drug dependency rather than merely focusing on drug treatment; the approach will 
build on outcomes and integrated support responding to the full range of individual needs.  
Locally, a recovery / abstinence model is being developed, which will utilise wrap around 
support services.  The focus will be on planned discharges from the service.  Substance 
misuse commissioning will be moving towards a payment by results / outcome based 
approach.   

11 Safer Herefordshire will need to develop a relationship with the new mental health provider, as 
the main substance misuse provider will be incorporated in the new Trust. 

12 Anti Social Behaviour (ASB) and re-offending remain high on the Government’s agenda.  ASB 
services should be victim oriented, following a case management approach, focusing on those 
victims with the highest levels of harm.  Reducing re-offending will continue to be a statutory 
requirement for Community Safety Partnerships to tackle. 

38



13 As part of the organisational design process, the staffing structure and resources applied to 
this programme area have been reviewed and consulted upon with partners.  The outcome of 
that process has combined staff from the Community Regeneration Team and Safer 
Herefordshire Teams under a single service manager within a new Sustainable Communities 
Team. 

Conclusions 

14 Numerous government papers/strategies are being produced around this agenda, all of which 
need to be considered when examining how Safer Herefordshire will deliver in the future.   

15       It was agreed that Safer Herefordshire needs to grasp the opportunities it has been presented 
with and ‘Be Brave’ about moving forward, focusing clearly on outcomes.  It was agreed that 
as resources are reducing, it is important that the partnership needs to ‘Be Smart’ with its 
priority setting and so the ‘less is more approach’ was agreed. 

16     Partners recognised the strength of the Partnership and felt strongly that commissioning and   
decommissioning needs should be undertaken together.  The Partnership must be clear, 
rigorous and intelligence driven toward its outcomes. 

17        The Safer Herefordshire Strategy Group has therefore agreed the following priorities: 

• Integrated Offender Management (IOM) - to reduce re-offending, focusing on the ‘top 
20%’ of offenders – to be led by Probation 

• Alcohol – To reduce alcohol related crime and ASB – focusing on reducing the impact 
of alcohol misuse and increasing the economic offer of Herefordshire’s night-time 
economy – to be jointly led by police and Public Health. 

• Community Resilience – to trial a set of interventions to enhance resilience in 
neighbourhoods – to be led by the Partnership Support Team. 

Tackling drug use will be cross-cutting and domestic abuse will be tackled within the IOM 
priority. 

18 Safer Herefordshire is currently defining these priorities further and assessing the resources it 
will receive to deliver with.  Greater clarification is expected at the forthcoming Safer 
Herefordshire Strategy Group meeting on 10th March 2011.  Once this clarity has been 
achieved, Safer Herefordshire will ensure it communicates with its sub-groups, the LSP, 
Elected Members and the Third Sector.  From this meeting, leads will develop a Partnership 
Plan clearly outlining how progress will be made against each priority.  

Community Impact 

19  Focused activity around community safety can only improve the quality of life for communities. 

20  A more victim centred approach will support our more vulnerable members of the community. 

Financial Implications 

21 Financial implications should be clearer after the next Safer Herefordshire Strategy Group 
meeting, to be held once partner agencies are more certain about their budget allocations.  
This does however leave the work of Safer Herefordshire financially vulnerable, particularly 
with the loss of Area Based Grant (ABG). 

39



Legal Implications 

22  Community Safety Partnerships are statutory partnerships, with statutory responsibilities to 
develop and deliver a Partnership Plan to tackle community safety, substance misuse and re-
offending. 

Risk Management 

23  The Safer Herefordshire Partnership will need to review programme budgets in the light of any 
funding challenges emerging in relation to partnership funding reductions. 

Consultees 

24 Key partners agencies.  

Appendices 

• None.  

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

40



 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
David Penrose, Democratic Services Officer, on 01432 383690 

MEETING: COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

DATE: 11TH FEBRUARY 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: WORK PROGRAMME 

REPORT BY:  Democratic Services Officer 

 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide. 

Purpose 

To consider the Committee’s work programme. 

Recommendation 

 THAT subject to any comment or issues raised by the Committee the 
Committee work programme be approved and reported to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

Introduction and Background 

1.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for overseeing, co-ordinating 
and approving the work programme of the Committee, and is required to periodically 
review the scrutiny committees work programmes to ensure that overview and 
scrutiny is effective, that there is an efficient use of scrutiny resources and that 
potential duplication of effort by scrutiny members is minimised.   

2.  The work programme, set out at Appendix 1, may be modified by the Chairman 
following consultation with the Vice-Chairman and the Directors in response to 
changing circumstances. 

3.  Should any urgent, prominent or high profile issue arise, the Chairman may consider 
calling an additional meeting to consider that issue. 

4.  Should Members become aware of any issues they consider may be added to the 
scrutiny programme they should contact the Democratic Services Officer to log the 
issue so that it may be taken into consideration by the Chairman when planning 
future agendas or when revising the work programme. 

Background Papers 
 
• None identified. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

41



42



 

COMMUNITY SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

WORK PROGRAMME TO BE PRESENTED FOR CONSIDERATION ON 11 FEBRUARY 2011 

 
 7 March 2011 

Items • Budget Monitoring 
• Performance Monitoring  
• Edgar Street Grid – Update Review of Cabinet's Response 

to the Review on Volunteering  
• Action Plan Monitoring: Review of Tourism and Review of 

Volunteering. 

 27 June 2011 

Items • Budget Monitoring 
• Performance Monitoring  
• Edgar Street Grid – Update  
• Safer Herefordshire Scrutiny Review Group  – Update 
• Committee Work Programme  

Scrutiny Reviews • Review of Access to Services 
• Review of Festivals 

 3 October 2011 

Items • Budget Monitoring 
• Performance Monitoring  
• Edgar Street Grid – Update  
• Action Plan Monitoring: Review of Tourism and Review of 

Volunteering 
• Committee Work Programme 

 5 December 2011 

Items • Budget Monitoring 
• Performance Monitoring  
• Edgar Street Grid – Update  
• Safer Herefordshire Scrutiny Review Group  – Update 
• Committee Work Programme 

 27 February 2012 

Items • Budget Monitoring 
• Performance Monitoring  
• Edgar Street Grid – Update  
• Action Plan Monitoring: Review of Tourism and Review of 

Volunteering 
• Committee Work Programme 

 16 April 2012 

Items • Budget Monitoring 
• Performance Monitoring  
• Edgar Street Grid – Update  
• Committee Work Programme 

 
Further additions to the work programme will be made as required. 

 

43



44


	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	6 Scrutiny Review of the Strategic Direction of the Edgar Street Grid Project
	Review of Support for ESG Final Report - v8

	7 Safer Herefordshire Scrutiny Review Group Annual Report 2010
	8 Future Developments of the Safer Hereford Partnership
	9 Committee Work Programme
	Community Services Work Prog Feb 2011


